AMENDED IN SENATE JULY 2, 2001
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MAY 31, 2001
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY APRIL 25, 2001
AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY MARCH 27, 2001

CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE—2001-02 REGULAR SESSION

ASSEMBLY BILL No. 546

Introduced by Assembly Member Cohn

February 21, 2001

An act to amend Sectiors31863-5:-11200,41501and-42005-of, and
te-add-Chapter -7 {commencing-with-Seetion 11 225-te-Bivisien 5 of,
320, 1671, 1803.5, 1808.7, 11200, 11202, 11202.5, 11203.5, 11204,
11206, 11206.5, 11207, 11208, 11209, 11210, 11212, 11213, 11214,
11215, 11215.5, 11216, 11216.2, 11217, 11218, 11219, 11219.5, 11222,
41501, 42005, 42005.1, 42007, and 42007.3 of, to add Sections 360.1
and 11205.2 to, to repeal Section 11205.1 of, and to repeal and add
Section 11205 othe Vehicle Code, relating to vehicles.

LEGISLATIVE COUNSELS DIGEST

AB 546, as amended, Cohn. Traffic violation schools.

(1) Under existing law, a person is entitled to have a complaint
relating to the safe operation of a vehicle dismissed with a copy of that
dismissaforwarded to the Department of Motor Vehicles when a person
attends a licensed traffic violator school, licensed driving school, or
other court-approved program of driving instruction. Existing law
requires traffic violator schools to meet specified criteria, including the
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requirement that the schools have a specified lesson plan approved by
the department.

Thisbill would allow a court to order any person convicted of a traffic
violation to complete a course of traffic safety instruction at either a
licensed traffic violator school or home study program. The bill would
prohibit any person from operating a traffic violation school or home
study pogram without a current valid license issued by the department.
This bill would allow certain home study programs that were court
approved prior to January 1, 2002, to continue until the department’s
disapproval of a license application or the conclusion of a statutory
application schedule, whichever occurs first.

This bill would also require the department to approve a traffic
violator school lesson plan and curriculum, and would make special
provision for the approval of the curriculum and lesson plans for home
study programs based on a plan that the department determines to be
an educational experience equivalent to that provided by classroom
programs.

The bill would require each person participating in a school or
program to demonstrate his or her knowledge of course materials by
passing a final examination as specified. The bill would authorize
traffic violator schools to charge a $15 fee for the issuance of a
duplicate certificate of completion.

(2) Under existing law, a court is authorized to take certain actions
regarding a traffic violator school’s name and the removal of the name
from the eferral list of traffic violator schools. Existing lawquires the
approval of the court in each judicial district wherein aposed traffic
school owner or traffic classes are to be conducted prior to the school
being included on the referral list.

Thisbill would impose those duties, as revised, on the department and
would include home study programs within the scope of the revised
provisions, rather than the courts, and would delete the provisions
currently requiring court approval of traffic violator schools and
classesThe bill would alsoequire the department to maintain a list of
all of the approved locations of licensed traffic violator schools and a
separatdist of the department-approved home study programs. The bill
would require the referral list to be made available electronically to
courtsand be maintained in a form tha&aordsnames appearing on the
list on a random basis at least daily.

(3) Existinglaw authorizes the department to monitor any school for
traffic violators.

95



—3— AB 546

This bill would require the department to monitor or audit traffic
violator schools and would include home study programs within this
scope.

(4) Existing law currently does not specifically authorize the use of
home study programs of driving instruction as a court-approved
program.

Thisbill would specifically authorize a court to allow traffic violators
to participate in a licensed home study program and, upon completion
and passage of a final examination, to be issued a certificate of
completion.

Thebill would requirethe department to develop regulations to verify
the identity of persons taking and completing a home study program,
develop a laser printer compatible certificate form, and maintain
records of persons completing traffic violator schools and home study
programs, as specified.

(5) Existing law authorizes a court to utilize the services of a
nonprofit agency for traffic violator school administration and
monitoringservices and charge traffic violators a fee to defray the costs
incurred by the agency for providing those services. The fee is limited
to the actual cost incurred by the agency or $5, whichever is less.

This bill would delete the $5 limitation on the fee amount and would
generally prohibit the nonprofit agencies from duplicating services
provided by the department.

(6) Existinglaw requiresthe department to charge a fee, based upon
a determination made by the department, as specified, which is not to
exceed $3 for each completion certificate issued by a traffic violator
school or court-authorized program to a person completing instruction
in the school or program. Existing lawgbribits a traffic violator school
from charging a fee in excess of the fee charged by the department for
furnishing a certificate of completion.

Thisbill would requirethe department to charge a fee of $3 and would
delete the related provisions that require the department to determine
the amount of the fee.

The bill would also delete the above-described fee restriction
imposed on traffic violator schools.

(7) The bill would make related conforming changes and delete
obsolete provisions.

(8) Because a violation of certain provisions of the bill would be a
crime, the bill would impose a state-mandated local program by
creating new crimes.
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(9) The bill would require the Department of Motor Vehicles to
conduct a comparative study of the effectiveness in reducing traffic
violations and accidents by those persons attending licensed traffic
violator schools and those persons participating in home study
programs. The bill would require the department to consult with
licensed traffic violator school and home study program operators in
undertaking and conducting that study and to report its findings to the
Legislature on or before January 1, 2004.

(10) The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse
local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the
state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that
reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act
for a specified reason.

Ei) Existing—taw quuues the—Department-of-Metor—Vehieles to

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: vyes.
State-mandated local program: yes

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

1  SECHONI—Section1803-5-6fthe-Vehicle Codedisamended
2 SECTION 1. Section 320 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
3 read:

4  320. “Established place of business” is a place actually

5 occupied either continuously or at regular periods by any of the
6 following:
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—5— AB 546

(@) A dealer, remanufacturer, remanufacturer branch,
manufacturer, manufacturer branch, distributor, distributor
branch, automobile driving schoblpme study @gram,or traffic
violator school where the books and records pertinent to the type
of business being conducted are kept.

(b) An automobile dismantler where the books and records
pertinent tahe type of business being conducted are kept. A place
of business of an automobile dismantler which qualified as an
“established place of business” before September 17, 1970, is an
“established place of business” as defined in this section.

(c) A registration service where the books and records pertinent
to the type of business being conducted are kept.

SEC. 2. Section 360.1 is added to the Vehicle Code, to read:

360.1. (a) A ‘home study program of traffic safety
instruction” is abusiness that for compensation provides, or offers
to provide, instruction in traffic safety using any format for the
instruction, other than the classroom format used by a traffic
violator school for personseferred by aourt pursuant to Section
42005. A home study program may use, but is not limited to, any
program of traffic safety instruction licensed by the department
provided over the Internet, by video tape, or by correspondence.
A home study program owner may operate an approved home
study program in multiple formats.

(b) A “home study program office or branch office” is any
location in this state where a home study program maintains
records, is open to the public, and maintains regular office hours.

(c) A “home study program operator” is a person who directs
and manages the operation of a home study program who may be
either the home study program owner or another person
designated by the home study program owner to personally direct
andmanage the home study program for, or on behalf of, the home
study program owner.

(d) A *home study program owner” is any natural person,
association, limited liability company, or corporation that owns a
home study program.

SEC. 3. Section 1671 of the Vehicle Code is amended to read:

1671. (a) The established place of business of a dealer,
remanufacturer,  remanufacturer  branch,  manufacturer,
manufacturer branch, distributor, distributor branch, automobile
driving school-etraffic violator school or home study program,
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shallhave an office and a dealeranufacturer, or remanufacturer
shall also have a display or manufacturing area situated on the
same property where the business peculiar to the type of license
issued by the department is or may be transacted. When a room or
rooms in a hotel, roominghouse, apartment house building, or a
part of any single- or multiple-unit dwelling house is used as an
office or offices of an established place of business, the room or
rooms shall be devoted exclusively to and occupied for the office
or offices of the dealer, manufacturer, manufacturer branch,
remanufacturer, remanufacturer branch, distributor, distributor
branch, automobile driving schoe}; tyaffic violator schoolpr
homestudy pogram,shall be located on the ground floor, and shall
be so constructed as to provide a direct entrance into the room or
rooms from the exterior of the building. A dealer who does not
offer new or used vehicles for sale at retail, a dealer who has been
issued an autobroker’s endorsement to his or her dealer’s license
and who does not also sell motor vehicles at retail, or a dealer who
is a wholesaler involved for profit only in the sale of vehicles
between licensed dealers, shall have an office, but a display area
IS not required.

(b) The established place of business of an automobile
dismantler shall have an office and a dismantling area located in
a zone property zoned for that purpose by the city or county.

SEC. 4. Section 1803.5 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

1803.5. Every clerk of a court or hearing officer, when a
person who receives a notice to appear at a court or board
proceeding for a violation of any statute relating to the safe
operation olvehicles is granted a continuance of the proceeding in
con5|derat|on for—a{%eﬂelaﬂee—a{—a—seheel—fer—tmmc—wela%ors a

attendance at a Ilcensed traffic violator school or the successful
completion of a licensed home study program and the court
dismisseshe complaint in consideratienferthat-attendaridbat
attendance or completipshall prepare an abstract of the record

of the court or board proceeding, certify the abstract to be true and
correct, and cause the abstract to be forwarded to the department
at its office at Sacramento within 10 days after the complaint is
dismissed.
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— 7 — AB 546

SEC. 5. Section 1808.7 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

1808.7. The record of the department relating to the first
proceeding and dismissal under Section 1803.5 in any 18-month
period-ferof participation by a person in-a-heensed-sehoeol for
tratfic—violaters,—a—licensed—driving—schoeel—er—any—eother

court-approvegrogram-of-drivingastractioprogram of traffic
safety instruction at a licensed traffic violator school or through

the completion of a licensed home studygpam is confidential,
shall not be disclosed to any person, except a court, and shall be
used only for statistical purposes by the department.

SEC. 6. Sectionl200 of the Vehicle Code is amendecetd:

11200. (a) The department shall licenseaffic violator
schoolsferand home study programs that provide traffic safety
instruction totraffic violators for purposes of Section 42005. No
person shall own or operate a traffic violator schmoh home
study programor, except as provided in Section 11206, give
instruction for compensation in a traffic violator school without a
currently valid license issued by the department.

(b) All home study programs that were court approved prior to
January 1, 2002, shall have 90 days after the adoption of
regulations by the department regarding the submission of
applications tasubmit to the department applications for licensing
as home study programs.

(c) The department shall act on all applications submitted
during the period described in subdivision (b) within 180 days
following the conclusion of the 90-day application period.

(d) A home study program that was court approved prior to
January 1, 2002, may continue operations in court approved
jurisdictions until the department’s disapproval of the license
application or the conclusion of the period described in
subdivision (c), whichever occurs first.

(e) No home study program approved by the department may
commence operations on a statewide basis until the department
certifiesthat all applications submitted pursuant to subdivision (b)
have been approved or disapproved.

SEC. 7. Sectionl202 of the Vehicle Code is amendecetd:

11202. (a) Except as provided in subdivision {le§ owner
of a traffic violator schoolewner a home study prograshall
meetall of the following criteria before a license may be issued for
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the—traffic—violater—seheoolby the department to that school or
program:

(1) Maintairan-establishdfistablish and maintain place of
business in this state-whitat is open to the public. No office or
place of business of a traffic violator schoot home study
program including any traffic violator school branch or classroom
location, may be situated within 500 feet of any court of law, unless
the owner was established at the location on or before July 1, 1984.

(2) Conform to standards established by regulation of the
department. In adopting the standards, the department shall
consider those practices and instructional programs which may
reasonably foster the knowledge, skills, and judgment necessary
for compliance with traffic laws. The standards may include, but
are not limited to, school personnel, equipment, curriculum,
procedures for the testing and evaluation of students,
recordkeeping, and business practices.

(3) Procure and file with the department a bond of two
thousand dollars ($2,000) executed by an admitted surety and
conditionedupon the applicant not practicing any fraud or making
any fraudulent representation which will cause a monetary loss to
a person taking instruction from the applicant or to the state or any
local authority.

(4) HaveA traffic violator school, other than a home study
program, shall hava classroom approved by the department and
the proper equipment necessary for giving instruction to traffic
violators.

(5) Have(A) A traffic violator school, other than a home study
program, shall havea lesson plan approved by the department and
provide not less than the minimum instructional time specified in
the plan-AM home study program shall have its curriculum and
lessorplan approved by the department and shall offer a plan that
the department determines to be an educational experience
equivalent to that provided by classroom programs, taking into
consideration the self-paced nature of home study programs and
the interactive nature of home study programs utilizing Internet
technology.

(B) An approved lesson plaor curriculum, for a traffic
violator school other than a home study prograimll provide a
minimum of 400 minutes of instruction, except that a lesson plan
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—9— AB 546

for instructing persons under the age of-18-siagil provide a
minimum of 600 minutes of instruction.

(6) (A) Execute and file with the department an instrument
designating the director as agent of the applicant for service of
process, as provided in this paragraph, in any action commenced
againsthe applicant arising out of any claim for damagetesed
by any person by the applicant’s violation of any provision of this
code committed in relation to the specifications of the applicant’s
traffic violator school ohome study program @ny condition of
the bond required by paragraph (3).

(B) The applicant shall stipulate in the instrument that any
process directed to the applicant, when personal service cannot be
made in this state after due diligence, may be served instead upon
the director or, in the director’s absence from the department’s
principal offices, upon any employee in chargéhefoffice of the
director, and this substituted service is of the same effect as
personal service on the applicant. The instrument shall further
stipulate that the agency created by the designation shall continue
during the period covered by the license issued pursuant to this
section and so long thereafter as the applicant may be made to
answer irdamages for a violation of this code for which the surety
may be made liable or any condition of the bond.

(C) The instrument designating the director as agent for service
of process shall be acknowledged by the applicant before a notary
public.

(D) If the director or an employee of the department, in lieu of
the director, is served with a summons and complaint on behalf of
the licensee, one copy of the summons and complaint shall be left
with the director or in the director’s office in Sacramento or mailed
to the office of the director in Sacramento. A fee of five dollars ($5)
shall also be paid to the director or employabeatime of service
of the copy of the summons and complaint, or shall be included
with a summons and complaint served by mail.

(E) The service on the director or department employee
pursuant to this paragraph is sufficient service on the licensee if a
notice of the service and a copy of the summons and complaint is,
on the same day as the service or mailing of the summons and
complaint, sent by registered mail by the plaintiff or his or her
attorney to the licensee. A copy of the summons and complaint
shall also be mailed by the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney to the
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surety on the licensee’s bond at the address of the surety given in
the bond, postpaid and registered with request for return receipt.

(F) The director shall keep a record of all processes served
pursuant to this paragraph showing the day and hour of service,
and shall retain the documents served in the department’s files.

(G) If the licensee is served with process by service upon the
director or a department employee in lieu of the director, the
licensee has 30 days after that service within which to answer any
complaint or other pleading filed in the cause. For purposes of
venue, if the licensee is served with process by service upon the
director or a department employee in lieu of the director, the
service is considered to have been made upon the licensee in the
county in which the licensee has or last had his or her established
place of business.

(7) Have a name approved by the department pursuant to
Section 11205. However, a licensed traffic violator school or
court-approvedhome study program operating prior to January 1,
2002, may continue to use its name without the need to apply to the
department for approval pursuant to Section 11205.

(8) Meet the requirements of Section 11202.5 and subdivision
(b) of Section 11208, relating to traffic violator schoolhome
study progranoperators, if the owner is also the operator of the
traffic violator schoobr home study prograntf the owner is not
the operator of the traffic violator schoot home study pigram
the owner shall designate an operator who shall meet the
requirements of Section 11202.5.

8-

(9) Provide the department with a written assurance that the
school will comply with the applicable provisions of Subchapter
Il or 1l of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C.
Sec. 12101, et seq.), and any other federal and state laws
prohibiting discrimination against individuals with disabilities.
Compliance may include providing sign language interpreters or
other accommodations for students with disabilities.

(b) The qualifying requirements specified in subdivision (a)
otherthan for home study pgram applicantsshall be met within
one year from the date of application for a license, or a new
application and fee is required.
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(c) Paragraphs (3) and (6) of subdivision (a) do not apply to
public schools or other public agencies, which shall also not be
required to post a cash deposit pursuant to Section 11203.

(d) Paragraph (7) of subdivision (a) does not apply to public
schools or other public educational institutions.

(e) A notice approved by the department shall be posted in
every traffic violator schoek—brancland home study program
branch officeand classroom location-statingnd, in the case of
a home study program, provided ®very person prior to
permittingthat person to start the home study program. The notice
shall statethat any person involved in the offering of, or soliciting
for, a completion certificate for attendance at a traffic violator
schoolor for completing a home stugyogram in which the
person does not attermt completeor does not complete the
minimum amount of instruction time provided by subdivision (a)
may be guilty of violating Section 134 of the Penal Code.

SEC. 8. Section 11202.5 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11202.5. (a) The department shall license traffic violator
schooland home study prograoperators. No person may act as
a traffic violator school operator home study program operator
without a currently valid license issued by the department. Every
person, irorder to qualify as a traffic violator schawlhome study
programoperator, shall meet all of the following criteria in order
to be issued a traffic violator schoot home study program
operator’s license:

(1) Have not committed any act which, if the applicant were
licensed as a traffic violator school operator home study
program operatgrwould be grounds for suspension or revocation
of the license.

(2) Within three attempts, pass an examination that the
department requires on traffic laws, safe driving practices,
operation of motor vehicles, teaching methods and techniques,
traffic violator schooland home study prograrstatutes and
regulations, and office procedures and recordkeeping.

(3) Be 21 years of age or older.

(4) Haveworked for-an-establishedlicensedCalifornia traffic
violator schoobr home study progranan established California
driving school licensed under Chapter 1 (commencing with
Section 11100) of Division 5, or an established commercial
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driving training and education program operated by a bona fide
labor oganization as an instructor for a period of not less than 500
hours of actual in-class instruction.

(b) Paragraph (4) of subdivision (a) does not apply to a traffic
violator school operator validly licensed prior to January 1, 1987
nor to a home study program

(c) All the qualifying requirements specified in this section
shall be met within one year from the date of application for the
license or the application shall lapse. However, the applicant may
thereafter submit a new application upon payment of the required
fee.

SEC. 9. Section 11203.5 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11203.5. lIfthe state or any of its political subdivisionsfers
any loss or damage by reason of any fraudulent practice or
representation or by reason of any violation of this division by a
traffic violator school owneor owner of a home study program
the department may bring a cause of action against the traffic
violator school owneor owner of a home study prograand the
surety upon the owner’s bond.

SEC. 10. Section 11204 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11204. Thelepartment shall issue a license certificate to each
traffic violator schoolor home study prograrowner and each
traffic violator school operator licensed pursuant to this chapter.
The term of the license shall be for a period of one year from the
date of issue unless canceled, suspended, or revoked by the
department. The license shall be renewed annually. The
department shall require compliance with Section 11202 for
renewal of the license of a traffic violator schoolhome study
program owner. The department shall require compliance with
Section 11202.5 for renewal of the license of a traffic violator
school operator.

Where in its judgment the public interest so requires, the
department may issue a probationary license subject to special
conditions to be observed by the licensee in the conduct of the
traffic violator schoolor home study progranihe conditions to
be attached to the license shall be such as may, in the judgment of
the department, be in the public interest and suitable to the
qualifications of the applicant as disclosed by the application and
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investigation by the department of the information contained
therein. The conditions shall not appear on the license certificate.

Upon notification of death of a traffic violator schaslhome
study programlicensee, the department may issue a temporary
license to the executor or administrator of the estate of a deceased
holder of a validly outstanding license to conduct a traffic violator
schoolor home study progranor if no executor or administrator
has been appointed and until a certified copy of an order making
such an appointment is filed with the department, a temporary
licensemay be issued to the surviving spouse or other heir entitled
to conduct the business of the deceased. The temporary license
shall permit the holder to conduct the traffic violator schaol
homestudy pogramfor a period of one year from and after the date
of the original licensee’s death, and necessary one-year extensions
may be granted to permit disposal of the business and qualification
for a license of a purchaser of the business or the surviving spouse
or heir. The department may restrict or condition a temporary
license and attach to the exercise of the privilege thereunder any
terms and conditions that in the department’s judgment are
required for the protection of the public.

SEC. 11. Section 11205 of the Vehicle Code, as amended by
Section 455.5 of Chapter 931 of the Statutes of 1998, is repealed.

11205—(arFhe—departmentshall-publish—a—traffievielator
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SEC. 12. Section 11205 of the Véhicle Code, as amended by
Section 456 of Chapter 931 of the Statutes of 1998, is repealed.

1 205—(arTFhe—department—shalpublish-—semtannaally, or

95



NRPRRPRRPRRRRERRPRRRE
COONOUIRWNRPOOONOOUTAWN R

N N
N

NN NN
ool hWw

N
-~

WNN
O ©

WWWWWwWwwWwww
OCO~NOUITAWNEF

N
(@)

SEC. 13. Sectiorll205 is added to the Vehicle Code,dad:
11205. (a) Each traffic violator school and home study
program owner shall submit a proposed name to the department,

on a form approved by the department, aggliest name appval.
The department shall not impose a fee under this subdivision.

(b) The department shall have 30 days to act on the request for
name approval. If the department fails to act within 30 days of
receipt by the department of the name request, then the proposed
name shall be deemed approved by the department for use by the
traffic violator school or home study program for all purposes.

(c) In making a determination under this section whether or not
to approve a proposed name, the department shall use as its
criteria whether the proposed name is misleading to the public,
undignified, or implies that the applicant offers inducements or
premiums that derogate or distort the instructional intent of the
traffic safety program.

(d) If the department approves the proposed name it shall notify
the applicant of its decision within the time period set forth in
subdivision (b).

(e) (1) Whenever the department determines, pursuant to
subdivision (c) that the proposed name is inappropriate, the
department shall immediately notify the applicant that the
department has disapproved the proposed name. In its written
notice to the applicant of its decision to reject the proposed name,
the department shall set forth the specific basis, rationale, and
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supporting evidence for the departmedeision. A recital of the
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) is not sufficient to meet this
requirement.

(2) If requested by the applicant, or its representative, the
departmenshall schedule a hearing for that applicant at which the
sole issue shall be whether the name violates the standards set forth
in subdivision (c).

(3) The department shall make every effort to schedule,
conduct, and complete a hearing within 60 days of receipt of the
traffic violator school or home study program owner’s request for
name approval.

(f) A substitute proposed name may be submitted, pursuant to
this section, to the department for approval at any time before or
after the conclusion of the hearing. The department shall, within
30 days of receipt of the request for approval of the substitute
name, inform the owner-applicant, on a form approved by the
department, ats approval or rejection of the substitute name. The
owner-applicant may continue this appeal process for approval of
a substitute name until the department determines that the name
does not violate the standard set forth in subdivision (c).

(g) A decision by the department to reject a proposed name or
substitute name may be reviewed by any court of competent
jurisdiction.

SEC. 14. Section 11205.1 of the Vehicle Code is repealed.

112051 —Fhefee—autherzedin—subdivision{m)-oef-Section

tastraeton.

SEC. 15. Section 11205.2 is added to the Vehicle Code, to
read:

11205.2. (a) The department shall maintain a referral list
thatincludes all of the approved locations of traffic violator school
classes and, in a separate section, a list of the
department-approved home study programs, using the names
approved by the department pursuant to Section 11205. The
referral list shall be made available electronically to courts and
shall be maintained in a form that recorders names appearing on
the list on a random basis at least daily.
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(b) (1) Part 1 of the referral list, relating to traffic violator
school locations, shall include all of the following:

(A) The name of each traffic violator school.

(B) A telephone number to be used by students for information.

(C) The name of the county and judicial district.

(D) The name of the cities where classes are available.

(2) Eachtraffic violator school shall appear by name and shall
be permitted one school name in a judicial district.

(3) Part 1 of the list shall be organized alphabetically in
sections for each county and for each judicial district within the
county.The order of the traffic violator school names listed within
eachjudicial district shall be random pursuant tesat of computer
generated random numbers, a drawing, or a lottery conducted by
the department.

(c) (1) Part 2 of the referral list, relating to home study
programs, shall include all of the following:

(A) The name of each home study program.

(B) A telephone number to be used by students for information.

(C) An Internet website address, if available.

(2) Each home study program shall appear by nhame and shall
be permitted one name on the list.

(3) No advertising of products shall be permitted within the
course material of a home study program.

(d) Each court shall use the current referral list of traffic
violator schools and home study programs, published by the
departmentwhen it orders a person to complete a course in traffic
safety instruction pursuant to subdivision (a) or (b) of Section
42005.

(e) (1) When a court utilizes a public or private nonprofit
agency tanonitor traffic violator schools or home studpgrams
licensed by the department, the court may charge the traffic
violator a fee to defray the costs incurred by the agency for the
monitoring services provided to the court. If a fee is imposed, it
shall becollected by the court, and shall not exceed the actual cost
incurred by the agency for the monitoring services. The fee
authorized by this subdivision shall be applicable only in those
cases where a traffic violator has agreed to attend or has been
ordered to attend a course of traffic safety instruction pursuant to
Section 42005.
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(2) (A) Inits services to a court, no public or private agency
utilized by acourt may duplicate any appral, licensing, auditing,
investigating, regulatory, or other functions of the department set
forth in this chapter except for the function of monitoring actual
traffic violator school classes and home study program courses
taken by traffic violators within the judicial district in which the
agency provides services to the court. The monitoring shall occur
at least once every 90 days with reports forwarded to the
department and the respective courts on a monthly basis.

(B) No public or private agency utilized by a court may issue
certificates of completion or provide testing services for home
study programs.

(C) Nothing in this section is intended to prevent courts from
entering into contracts for public or private agencies to provide
administrative services other than those described in
subparagraph (B).

SEC. 16. Section 11206 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11206. (a) The department shall license traffic violator
school instructors. Except as exempted by this section, no person
shall act as a traffic violator school instructor without a currently
valid instructor’s license issued by the department. Every person,
in order to qualify as a traffic violator school instructor, shall meet
all of the following requirements before an instructor’s license
may be issued:

(1) Have a high school education.

(2) Within three attempts, pass an examination, as required by
the department, on traffic laws, safe driving practices, operation
of motor vehicles, and teaching methods and techniques.

(3) Hold a currently valid California driver’s license, which is
not subject to probation pursuant to Section 14250 due to the
applicantbeing a negligent operator within the meaning of Section
12810 or 12810.5. The applicant’s driving record shall not have
any outstanding notice for violating a written promise to appear in
court or for willfully failing to pay a lawfully imposed fine, as
provided in Section 405009.

(4) Be-4821years of age or older.

(b) All the qualifying requirements specified by this section
shall be met within one year from the date of application for a
license or the application shall lapse. However, the applicant may
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thereafter submit a new application upon payment of the requisite
fee.

(c) A license issued pursuant to this section is not required to
provide instruction to traffic violators in a public school or other
public educational institution by a person holdingakd teaching
credential with satisfactory training or experience in the subject
area, as determined by the department. Persons exempt from
licensure under this section are not required to obtain a license
certificate pursuant to Section 11207.

SEC. 17. Section 11206.5 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11206.5. Each applicant for a license as a traffic violator
school owner, traffic violator school operator, or traffic violator
school instructor shall submit an application to the department on
the forms prescribed by the department. The applicant shall
provide the department with any information concerning the
applicant’s character, honesty, integrity, and reputation which the
department may consider necessary.

SEC. 18. Section 11207 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11207. (a) The department shall issue a license certificate to
each traffic violatoschool instructor when it is satisfied that he or
she has met the qualifications required under this chapter. The
original instructor license and any license renewed pursuant to
subdivisions (b) and (c) shall be valid for a period of three years
from the date of issuance unless canceled, suspended, or revoked
by the department.

(b) Everyapplication for the renewal of a traffic violator school
instructor license may be made by the licensee prior to the
expiration date of the license by presenting to the department a
completed application on a form provided by the department. In
no event shall a traffic violator school instructor renew the license
after the date of expiration.

(c) The department shall require all of the following for the
renewal of an instructor’s license:

(1) Compliance with Section 11206, except subdivision (c)
thereof.

(2) Either of the following:

(A) Satisfactory completion of an examination as provided in
Section 11206 at least once during each succeeding three-year
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period after the initial issuance of the license—Hewever-tieu of
examinationferrenewal-efthelieense,

(B) Submission tohe departmentmay-aceept-submisdign
the licensee os$atisfactoryevidence of continuing professional
education.

(d) When, in its judgment, the public interest so requires, the
department may issue a probationary license subject to special
conditions to be observed by the licensee in the exercise of the
privilegegranted. The conditions to be attached to the license shall
be such as may, in the judgment of the department, be in the public
interest and suitable to the qualifications of the applicant, as
disclosed by the application and investigation by the department
of the information contained therein.

SEC. 19. Section 11208 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11208. (a) Feerissuance by the department of a license to
a traffic violator school owner owner of a home study program
shall be as follows:

(1) For the original license or an ownership change which
requires a new application, except as provided by Section 42231,
a fee of one hundred fifty dollars ($150), with an additional fee of
seventy dollars ($70) for each separate traffic violator sabrool
home study prograraranch or classroom location licensed. The
fee prescribed by this subdivision is nonrefundable.

(2) For annual renewal of the license for a traffic violator
schoolor owner of a home study prograand for each branch or
classroom location, a fee of fifty dollars ($50).

(3) If alteration of an existing license is required by a firm name
change, @hange in corporate officer structure, address change, or
the addition of a traffic violator school home study program
branch or classroom location, a fee of seventy dollars ($70).

(4) For replacement of the license certificate when the original
license is lost, stolen, or mutilated, a fee of fifteen dollars ($15).

(b) Fees for the issuance by the department of a license for a
traffic violator school operator shall be as follows:

(1) For the original license, a nonrefundable fee of one hundred
dollars ($100).

(2) For annual renewal of the license, a fee of fifty dollars
($50).
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(3) If alteration of an existing license is caused by a change in
the name or location of the established principal place of business
of the traffic violator school operated by the licensee, including a
transfer by a licensee from one traffic violator schmohome
study progranto another, a fee of fifteen dollars ($15).

(4) For replacement of the license certificate when the original
license is lost, stolen, or mutilated, a fee of fifteen dollars ($15).

(c) Fees for the issuance by the department of a license for a
traffic violator school instructor shall be as follows:

(1) For the original license, except as provided by Section
42231, a nonrefundable fee of thirty dollars ($30).

(2) For the triennial renewal of a license, a fee of thirty dollars
($30).

(3) If alteration of an existing license is required by a change
in the-rstructor's-employing-school'sname-erlecatimame or
location of the traffic violator school employing the instructor,
transfer of the instructor’s license to another employraffic
violator school, a fee of fifteen dollars ($15).

(4) For replacement of the instructor’s license certificate when
the original license is lost, stolen, or mutilated, a fee of fifteen
dollars ($15).

(d) The department shall charge a feenetteo-exoédaree
dollars ($3) for each completion certificate issued by a traffic
violator school to each person completing instructidheatraffic
violator school or in the home study prograihe-ameunt-of-the

Jhe clerk of the court shall
collectthis three dollar ($3) certificate fee from the traffic violator
at the same time the clerk collects the fee set forth in Section
42007.1,and shall transmit the collected fees to the department on
the first day of each quartddpon satisfactory completion of the
instruction offered by a licensed traffic violator schoohome
study programthe traffic violator schoadr home study program
shallprovide the student with a certificate of completion furnished

by the department-A-traffic-vielator-sehoeolshall-netcharge a fee
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generation and transmission of completlon certificates between
the department, course providers, and courts may be
accomplished electronically.

(e) Each traffic violator completing a course in traffic safety
shall demonstrate the extent of his or her knowledge aitinese
material by passing, with a minimum score of 70 percent correct
answers, a final examination as a condition of receiving the
certificate of completion. The final examination may be developed
by each traffic violator school or home study program to meet the
criteria designated by the department. The test scores shall be
retained by the traffic violator school or home study program as
part of their recordkeeping. The department shall develop
procedures for the administration of the final examination by and
for the home study program.

() The department shall develop regulations requiring home
study programs to reasonably verify the identity of persons taking
courses and completing final examinations. In developing these
regulations, the department shall consider technologies,
including, but not limited to, personal registration questions,
biometrics, voice recognition, or digital signatures. The
department shall also require students to indicate, under penalty
of perjury, that they personally completed the course and the final
examination.

(9) The department shall issue laser printer compatible
certificate forms to a licensed home study program. The home
study program shall complete the certificate for any student who
successfullgompletes the course, and shall forward the certificate
directly to the court that ordered or sentenced the traffic violator
to complete the traffic violator school or home study program. An
electronic orpaper confirmation of completion shall be sent to the
student. The department shall distribute certificates to licensed
home study programs, which distribution may be accomplished
electronically. The court and department shall only accept
completed certificates from licensed home study programs.

95



AB 546 — 26 —

NRPRRPRRPRRRRERRPRRRE
COONOUIRWNRPOOONOOUTAWN R

N N
N

NN NN
ool hWw

N
-~

WNN
O ©

WWWWWwWwwWwww
OCO~NOUITAWNEF

N
(@)

(h) The department shall maintain records of the number of
personsannually completing classroom traffic violator school and
home study programs by program type based on factors including
textbook, video, Internet Web sites, and any other program.

(i) A traffic violator school may charge a fee not to exceed
fifteen dollars ($15) for the issuance of a duplicate certificate of
completion requested by the traffic violator. The traffic violator
shall present this certificate of completion to the court as proof of
completion of instruction, and no other proof of completion of
instruction may be accepted by the court.

SEC. 20. Section 11209 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11209. Any traffic violator school owner—traffie—vietator
sehooloperator, ortraffie-vielatersehoaistraetorinstructor, or
home study program owneequired to be licensed under this
chapter who fails to renew the license before the expiration of the
licensemay not renew that license, but may reapply for an original
license pursuant to this chapter. For purposes of this section, a
license that has been canceled may not be renewed and a license
that is suspended or revoked may not be renewed, until
reinstatement or reissuance by the department. If the period of
suspension or revocation extends beyond the expiration of a
license, itmay not be renewed, but the person may apply for a new
license thereafter.

SEC. 21. Section 11210 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11210. Pending determination by the department that an
applicant for a license fully satisfies the requirements of this
chapter, the department may issue a temporary permit to the
applicant. A temporary permit may authorize the operation of a
traffic violator school ohome study programr acting as a traffic
violator school operator or traffic violator school instructor for a
period not to exceed 120 days while the department is completing
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its investigation and determination of all facts relative to the
qualifications of the applicant for the license.

The department may cancel a temporary permit when it has
determined or has reasonable cause to believe that the application
is incorrect or incomplete or the temporary permit was issued in
error. A temporary permit is invalid upon cancellation or once the
applicant has been issued or denied the license applied for.

SEC. 22. Section 11212 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11212. (a) Every owner licensed under this chapter shall
keep a record at the traffic violator schoalis home study
program’sprimary business location showing all of the following
for each student:

(1) The name and address and license number of the traffic
violator schoobr home study prograrmroviding instruction.

(2) The name and address of each person given instruction.

(3) The instruction permit number or driver’s license number
of every person given instruction.

(4) The name and number of the license issued pursuant to
Section 11207 of the traffic violator school instructor.

(5) The particular type of instruction given and the date or dates
of the instruction.

(6) A statement as to whether the approeedriculum or
lesson plan was followed.

(7) The total number of hours ofassroominstruction.

(8) The total cost to the student of the instruction, which shall
not exceed the amount of the fee represented or advertised by the
traffic violator schoolr home study prograrat the time of the
student’s enrollment.

(9) The court docket number citation numbeunder which
the student was referred to a traffic violator sclowdiome study
program

(10) The number of the completion certificate issued to the
student pursuant to subdivision (e) of Section 11208 and, if
different, the number of any copy thereof issued to the student.

(b) The records shall be retained for a minimum of three years
and shall be open to the inspection during business hours and at all
other reasonable times by the department, the court, a private
entity providing monitoring pursuant to Section 11222, the
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Legislative Analyst, and the Auditor General or authorized
employees thereof, but shall be only for confidential use.

(c) Whenever a licensee suspends or terminates the licensed
activity, the licensee shall surrender the records specified in
subdivision(a) to the department for examination not later than the
end of the third day, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and legal
holidays, after the date of suspension or termination. The
department may duplicate or make a record of any information
contained therein. All these records shall be returned to the
licensee not later than 30 days after the date of surrender.

SEC. 23. Section 11213 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11213. (a) Every traffic violator school ownarowner of a
home study prograiicensed pursuant to this chapter shall notify
the department within 10 days of any change in the ownership or
corporate structure of the licensee.

(b) Every traffic violator school ownesr owner of a home
study programshall immediately notify the department of the
following activities:

(1) Change of the site or location of the-sehobtensee’s
established principal place of business.

(2) Addition or deletion of a traffic violator school home
study progranbranch or classroom location.

(c) Every traffic violator school operator and traffic violator
school instructor licensed pursuant to this chapter shall report to
the department every change of residence address within five days
of the change.

(d) The department may require persons licensed pursuant to
this chapter to submit additional reports as determined necessary
by the department to serve the purposes of this chapter.

SEC. 24. Section 11214 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11214. Thealepartmentray-meniterany-sehsbhll monitor
or audit any traffic violator school or home study progrémm
traffic violators, including any traffic violator schoor home
study programbranch or classroom location, without advance
notice. The monitoringr auditingmay include, but is not limited
to, the instruction provided, business practices, and business
records.
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SEC. 25. Section 11215 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11215. The department, after notice and hearing, may
suspend or revoke any license issued under this chapter if any of
the following circumstances exist:

(@) The department finds and determines that the licensee
ceases to meet any requirement to obtain a license under this
chapter.

(b) The holder fails to comply with, or otherwise violates, any
provision of this chapter or any regulation or requirement of the
department adopted pursuant to this chapter.

(c) The licensee engages in fraudulent practices with respect to
its activities licensed under this chapter or induces or fails to
promptly report to the department any known fraud or fraudulent
practices orthe part of any employee of the traffic violator school
or home study program

(d) The licensee represents himself or herself as an agent or
employee of the department or uses advertising desigrueeats
the impression, or which would reasonably have the effect of
leadingpersons to believe that the licensee was in fact an employee
or representative of the department, or whenever the licensee
advertises, in any manner or means any statement which is untrue
or misleading and which is known, or which by the exercise of
reasonable care should be known, to be untrue or misleading.

(e) The licensee or any employee or agent of the licensee
collects fees for or preregisters any persoa tnaffic violator
schoolor home study prograrar solicits traffic-welaterseheol
safetyinstruction in an office of the department or in any court or
within 500 feet of any court.

(f) The licensee is convicted of violating Section 20001,
20002, 20003, 20004, 20006, 20008, 23103, 23104, 23152, or
23153 of this code or Sectid®2 of the Penal Code. A conviction
after a plea of nolo contendere is a conviction within the meaning
of this section.

(g) The traffic violator school owner teaches, or permits an
employee to teach, traffic safety instruction without a valid
instructor’s license.

(h) The traffic violator school owner owner of a home study
programdoes not have in effect a bond as provided in paragraph
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(3) of subdivision (a) of Section 11202 or a deposit in lieu of the
bond, as specified in Section 11203.

SEC. 26. Section 11215.5 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11215.5. The department, after notice and hearing, may also
suspend or revoke any license issued under this chapter when any
of the following circumstances exist:

(a) If the main business office of the traffic violator school is
located in any county with a population of 400,000 or more in
which the traffic violator school conducts its instructional
program, and the main business office does not maintain office
hours during the time that the day courts in that county are open
for business. This subdivision shall not apply to public schools.

(b) If the licensee is found by the department to be selling, or
knowingly permitting the sale of, completion certificates.

(c) If the licensee is found by the department to be intentionally
cutting instructional time short.

(d) If the licensee is found by the department to be intentionally
diverting any-student-to—a—tratfic—schoel-otherthan-the—school

nitlally—eontacted—by—thattudent, without disclosure to that
studentthreugh-the-use-of-the-departmdota traffic violator

school or home study program other than the school or program
initially contacted by that student using the department’s referral
program initially contacted by that student using the department
referral list of licensed traffic violator schoosnd home study
programs

SEC. 27. Section 11216 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11216. Anylicense issued to a traffic violator school owoer
owner of a home study progranmder this chapter shall be
automatically canceled upon the happening of any of the
following:

(a) The abandonment of the established place of business or the
change thereof without notice to the department pursuant to
Section 11213.

(b) The failure to maintain an adequate bond or to procure and
file another bond, as required by Section 11202, prior to the
effectivedate of the termination by the surety of any existing bond.

(c) The voluntary or involuntary surrender of the license,
except that a surrender or cessation of business by the licensee, or
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the suspension or revocation of the corporate status of the licensee,
does not preclude the department from filing an accusation for
revocation or suspension of the surrendered license, as provided
in Section 11215 or 11215.5, or affect the department’s decision
to suspend or revoke the license.

(d) Notification tothe department that the person designated as
the licensee has changed.

(e) Suspension or cancellation of the corporate status of the
licensee.

SEC. 28. Section 11216.2 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11216.2. (a) Any license issued to the owner or operator of
a traffic violator schoolr a home study programander this
chapter-shalinaybe automatically suspended for 30 days by the
department if the department has been notified that more than one
final determination has been made that the traffic violator school
or home study prograras violated a student’s rights under the
federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec.
12101, et seq.) or any other federal or state law prohibiting
discrimination against individuals with disabilities. The final
determination shall be made by a federal or state court of
competent jurisdiction or an appropriate federal or state
administrative agency, including, but not limited to, the
Department oFair Employment and Housing, or any combination
thereof.

For the purpose of this subdivision, “final determination”
means that no furthappeal of a determination can be taken to any
court because the time period for the appeal has expired.

(b) If a traffic violator school subject to suspension under this
section is operated by a traffic school operator licensed pursuant
to Section 11202.5 who is operating other traffic schools, the
licenses of the owners of those traffic schools operated by that
traffic school operator also shall be suspended for the 30-day
period.

SEC. 29. Section 11217 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11217. (a) Every licensee under this chapter is entitled to
notice and hearing prior to suspension or revocation of the license
by the department, except that the department shall immediately
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suspendhe license pursuant to subdivision (e) for any act of fraud
specified in subdivision (c) or (d) of Section 11215.

(b) Before reinstatement of any license suspended pursuant to
subdivision (a) of Section 11215, the licensee shall pay the
department a reinstatement fee of five dollars ($5).

(c) The notice and hearings provided for in this division shall
be pursuant to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 11500) of Part
1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

(d) Any action of the department, in suspending, canceling,
revoking, or failing to renew a license issued pursuant to this
chapter, may be reviewed by any court of competent jurisdiction.

(e) The department may, pending a hearing, temporarily
suspendhe license or permit of any traffic violator schoohome
study progranmowner;—eperater—ertastraetbor a period of not
more than 30 days if the director finds that the public interest so
requires. In that case, a hearing shall be held and a decision issued
within 30 days after issuance of the notice of temporary
suspension.

() The suspension, expiration, or cancellation of a license
issued pursuant to this chapter does not preclude the filing of an
accusation for the revocation or suspension of the suspended,
expired, or canceled license, and does not invalidate or otherwise
preclude a decision by the department to suspend or revoke the
license, and this determination may be considered by the
department in granting or refusing to grant any subsequent license
under this chapter to the same licensee or to any business
representative of the same licensee.

SEC. 30. Section 11218 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11218. (a) Aftethe filing of an accusation under this chapter,
the director may enter into a stipulated compromise settlement
agreementvith the consent of the licensee on terms and conditions
mutually agreeable to the director, the respondent licensee, and the
accuser without further hearing or appeal. The agreement may
include, but is not limited to, a period of probation or monetary
penalties, or both. The monetary penalty shall not exceed one
thousandlollars ($1,000) per violation for a traffic violator school
owneror owner of a home study programfive hundred dollars
($500) per violation for traffic violator school operators or
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instructorsand shall be based on the nature of the violation and the
effect of the violation on the purposes of this chapter.

(b) A compromise settlement agreement may be entered
before, during, or after the hearing, but is valid only if executed
and filed pursuant to subdivision (d) before the proposed decision
of the hearing officer, if any, is adopted or the case is decided.

(c) The department shall adopt, by regulation, a schedule of
maximum and minimum amounts of monetary penalties, the
payment of which may be included as a term or condition of a
compromise settlement agreement entered under subdivision (a).
Any monetary penalty included in a compromise settlement
agreement shall be within the range of monetary penalties in that
schedule.

(d) Any compromise settlement agreement entered under this
sectionshall be signed by the director, the respondent licensee, and
the accuser, or by their authorized representatives. The director
shall file, or cause to be filed, the agreement with the Office of
Administrative Hearings, together with the departmentice of
withdrawal ofthe accusation or statement of issues upon which the
action was initiated, unless that accusation or statement has not yet
been forwarded to the Office of Administrative Hearings.

(e) If the respondent licensee fails to perform all of the terms
and conditions of the compromise settlement agreement, the
agreement is void and the department may take any action
authorized by law notwithstanding the agreement, including, but
not limited to, refiling the accusation or imposing license
sanctions.

SEC. 31. Section 11219 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11219. The director may prescribe rules and regulations for
traffic violator schoolsand home study programegarding the
conduct of courses of education including curriculum, facilities,
and equipment. The curriculum shall include, -butis-retlimited to,
the-rightsand-duties-ofameteristastheypertainto-pedestrans and

therightsand-duties-ofa-pedestrian-astheyrelatetotraffietaws and
traffic—safety.not be limited to, a component examining driver

attitude and motivation that focuses on the reduction of future
driving violations, with particular emphasis on aggressive driving
behavior and behavior commonly known as “road ragélie

95



AB 546 — 34—

NRPRRPRRPRRRRERRPRRRE
COONOUIRWNRPOOONOOUTAWN R

N N
N

NN NN
ool hWw

N
-~

WNN
O ©

WWWWWwWwwWwww
OCO~NOUITAWNEF

N
(@)

director may also prescribe rules and regulations for the conduct
of instructor training courses.

SEC. 32. Section 11219.5 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11219.5. A traffic violator schoobr home study program
shall issue a receipt for any fee collected by the traffic violator
schoolor home study prograrinom any person who registers-for
er-attends;-er-beththattends, or participates intaaffic violator
schoolor home study program

SEC. 33. Section 11222 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

11222. Thealepartment may contract with a nongovernmental
entity to administer any part of this chapter, subject to limitations
in other laws regarding contracting out for services.-Ne-such
contract shall exceed three years’ duration. The contracting entity,
and any affiliate or subsidiary thereof monitorirg-traffic-vielator
sehoeols, or auditing traffic violator schools or home study
programs,shall conform to all of the following requirements:

(a) Engage in no other business activity vattraffic violator
sehools—erany—of-theprineipals—ef-thetraffievielatersehools,
school orhome study program or any principal of a traffic violator
school or homstudy pogramincluding the provision of services
or supplies.

(b) Provide reports in statistical form to the department and to
the Legislature as instructed by the department. These reports shall
be issued not less frequently than annually.

(c) Make its records available for inspection by authorized
representatives of the department, the Legislative Analyst, and the
Auditor General.

SEC. 34. Section 41501 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

41501. The court may order a continuance of a proceeding
against a person, who receives a notice to appear in court for a
violation of any statute relating to the safe operation of a vehicle,
in consideration for attendanee—at-a-licenrsed-schoolfortraffic

program—violaters—a—ticensed—driving—sehool—er—any—other

court-approved—program—of-drivinginstruction,—and—after that
attendanee,or participation in a program of traffic safety

instruction at a department licensed traffic violator school or
home study program, and after that attendance or participation,
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the court may dismiss the complaint under the following
conditions:

(a) If the offense is alleged to have been committed within 12
months of another offense that was dismissed under this section,
the court may order the continuance and, after the attendance
participation, dismiss the complaint. The court may order
attendance at a licensed-sehoolHortrafficvielataaffic violator
schoolthat offers a program of at least 12 hours of instruction.

(b) If the offense is not alleged to have occurred within 18
months of another offense that was dismissed under this section,
the court may order the continuance and, after the attendance
participation, dismiss the complaint if the attendance
participationis at any of the types of schools or programs that the
courtdirected pursuant to Section 42005 at the time of ordering the
continuance.

SEC. 35. Section 42005 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

42005. (a) The court may order any person convicted of a
traffic violation to -atterdcomplete a course of traffic safety
instruction at eithera traffic violator schoolor home study
program licensed pursuant to Chapter 1.5 (commencing with
Section 11200) of Division 5.

(b) In lieu of adjudicating a traffic offense, and with the consent
of the defendant, or after conviction of a traffic offense, the court
may order any person issued a notice to appear for a traffic
violation to -attenrdparticipate in a traffic violator schoolor
complete a home study progrdicensed pursuant to Chapter 1.5
(commencing with Section 11200) of Division 5.

(c) Except a®therwise provided in subdivision (d), any person
so ordered may choose the traffic violator sclowdiome study
programthe person will attendnd completeThe court shall make
available to each person subject to such an order the current
referral list of traffic violator school&nd home study programs
published by the department pursuant to Section112065.2
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nce.

& Notwithstanding subdivision (b), a court may not order a
person to attendr participate in atraffic violator school in lieu
of adjudicating an offense if the person was issued a notice to
appear for a serious traffic violation, as defined in subdivision (i)
of Section 15210, that occurred in a commercial motor vehicle, as
defined in subdivision (b) of Section 15210.

C))

(e) Any person who willfully fails to comply with a court order
to attendor participate in atraffic violator schoobr home study
programis guilty of a misdemeanor.

SEC. 36. Section 42005.1 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

42005.1. Theourt may order any person designated to attend
a traffic violator schoolor home study programo instead
participate in a study of traffic violator scho@sd home study
programslicensed pursuant to Chapter 1.5 (commencing with
Section 11200) of Division 5. The person’s participation in that
study constitutes attending-a—ceurt-superviserjram of traffic
safety instruction for purposes of Section 42007.

SEC. 37. Section 42007 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

42007. (a) Thelerk of the court shall collect a fee from every
person who is ordered or permitted to attend a traffic violator
schoolor home study programursuant to Section 42005-e+who
attends—any—other—eourt-supervised—program—oftraffie—safety
thastruetion The fee shall be in an amount equal to the total bail set
forth for the eligible offense on the uniform countywide bail
schedule. As used in this subdivision, “total bail” means the
amount established pursuant to Section 1269b of the Penal Code
in accordance with the Uniform Statewide Bail Schedule adopted
by the Judicial Council, including all assessments, surcharges, and
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penalty amounts. Where multiple offenses are charged in a single
notice to appear, the “total bail” is the amount applicable for the
greater of the qualifying offenses. However, the court may
determine a lesser fee under this subdivision upon a showing that
the defendant is unable to pay the full amount.

The fee shall not include the cost, or any part thereof, of traffic
safety instruction offered by theaffic violator school or-ether
home studyrogram.

(b) Revenues derived from the fee collected under this section
shall be deposited in accordance with Section 68084 of the
Government Code in the general fund of the county and, as may
be applicable, distributed as follows:

(1) In any county in which a fund is established pursuant to
Section 76100 or 76101 of the Government Code, the sum of one
dollar ($1) foreach fund so established shall be deposited with the
county treasurer and placed in that fund.

(2) In any county that has established a Maddy Emergency
MedicalServices Fund pursuant to Section 1797.98a of the Health
and Safety Code, an amount equal to the sum of each two dollars
($2) for every seven dollars ($7) that would have been collected
pursuant to Section 76000 of the Government Code shall be
deposited irthat fund. Nothing in the act that added this paragraph
shall be interpreted in a manner that would result in either of the
following:

(A) The utilization of penalty assessment funds that had been
set aside, on or before January 1, 2000, to finance debt service on
a capital facility that existed before January 1, 2000.

(B) The reduction of the availability of penalty assessment
revenues that had been pledged, on or before January 1, 2000, as
a means of financing a facility which was approved by a county
board of supervisors, but on January 1, 2000, is not under
construction.

(c) For fees resulting from city arrests, an amount equal to the
amount of base fines that would have been deposited in the
treasury of the appropriate city pursuant to paragraph (3) of
subdivision (b) of Section 1463.001 of the Penal Code shall be
deposited in the treasury of the appropriate city.

(d) As used in this section;~ceurt-supervised-progrdariy
other program of traffic safety instructiorihcludes, but is not
limited to, any program of traffic safety instructiapproved by
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the departmenthe successful completion of which is accepted by
the court in IieL_J pf adjudicgting a violation of t_hi_s code.

(e) FhreJudicial-Couneilshall-study-theminimum—ehgibility

—The clerk of the court, in a county that offersficafiolator
school shall include in any courtesy notice mailed to a defendant
for an offense that qualifies for traffisolator school attendance
the following statement:

NOTICE: If you are eligible and decide not to attend traffic
violator school your automobile insurance may be adversely
affected.

SEC. 38. Section 42007.3 of the Vehicle Code is amended to
read:

42007.3. (a) Notwithstanding Section 42007, revenues
derivedfrom fees collected under Section 42007 from each person
required or permitted to attemd participate in atraffic violator
schoolor a home study programpursuant to Section 42005 as a
result of a violation of subdivision (a) or (c) of Section 21453,
subdivision (c) of Section 21454, or subdivision (a) of Section
21457 shall be allocated as follows:

(1) The first 30 percent of the amount collected shall be
allocated to the general fund of the city or county in which the
offense occurred.

(2) The balance of the amount collected shall be deposited by
the county treasurer under Section 42007.

(b) This section does not apply to the additional twenty-four
dollars ($24) collected under subdivision (a) of Section 42007.1.
SEC. 39. (a)The Department of Motor Vehicles shall conduct
a comparative study of the effectiveness in reducing traffic
violations and accidents by those persons attending licensed
traffic violator schools and those persons participating in home
study programs. The department shall consult with licensed traffic
violator school and home study program operators in undertaking

and conducting the study.
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(b) The Department of Motor Vehicles shall report its findings
regarding the study described in subdivision (a) to the Legislature
on or before January 1, 2004.

SEC. 40. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant
to Section 6 of Article Xlll B of the California Constitution
because the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or
schooldistrict will be incurred because this act creates a new crime
or infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the
penalty for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section
17556 of the Government Code, or changes the definition of a
crime within the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the
California Constitution.
teread:
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